
 
 

 
eastsussex.gov.uk 

LEAD MEMBER FOR RESOURCES AND CLIMATE CHANGE 
 
DECISIONS to be made by the Lead Member for Resources and Climate Change,  
Councillor Nick Bennett 
 
++ The Lead Member will take the decisions remotely, via MS Teams ++  
 
TUESDAY, 14 SEPTEMBER 2021 AT 3.00 PM  
 
COUNTY HALL, LEWES 
 
 
AGENDA 
 
1   Decisions made by the Lead Cabinet Member on 29 July 2021  (Pages 3 - 4) 

 
2   Disclosure of Interests   

Disclosure by all Members present of personal interests in matters on the agenda, the 
nature of any interest and whether the Members regard the interest as prejudicial under 
the terms of the Code of Conduct  
 

3   Urgent items   
Notification of any items which the Lead Member considers urgent and proposes to take 
at the appropriate part of the agenda.  
 

4   Notice of Motion: To support the Climate and Ecological Emergency Bill  (Pages 5 - 20) 
Report by the Director of Communities, Economy and Transport  
 

5   Any items previously notified under agenda item 3   
 

 
 
 
PHILIP BAKER 
Assistant Chief Executive   
County Hall, St Anne’s Crescent 
LEWES BN7 1UE 6 September 2021 
 
Contact Simon Bailey, Democratic Services Officer,  
01273 481935 
Email: simon.bailey@eastsussex.gov.uk  
 
NOTE: As part of the County Council’s drive to increase accessibility to its public meetings, this 
meeting will be broadcast live on its website and is accessible at: 
www.eastsussex.gov.uk/yourcouncil/webcasts/default.htm 
 
 

http://www.eastsussex.gov.uk/yourcouncil/webcasts/default.htm


This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

 

LEAD MEMBER FOR RESOURCES AND CLIMATE CHANGE 
 
DECISIONS made by the Lead Member for Resources and Climate Change, Councillor Nick 
Bennett, on 29 July 2021 via MS Teams  
 

 
Councillor Denis spoke on item 7 (see minute 29) 
 
 
25 DECISIONS MADE BY THE LEAD CABINET MEMBER ON 15 JULY 2021  
 
25.1 The Lead Member approved as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 15 
July 2021.  
 
26 REPORTS  
 
26.1 Reports referred to in the minutes below are contained in the minute book. 
 
27 DISPOSAL OF THE COUNCIL'S LEASEHOLD INTEREST IN LAND TRANSACTION 
WITH EASTBOURNE COLLEGE, EASTBOURNE  
 
27.1 The Lead Member considered a report by the Chief Operating Officer, together with 
exempt information contained in a later agenda item.  
 
DECISIONS  
 
27.2 The Lead Member RESOLVED to (1) declare the asset known as Eastbourne Grounds 
Service Depot, Willingdon Road, Eastbourne (the Site) surplus to the County Council’s 
requirements;  
 
(2) approve the disposal of the Council’s leasehold interest in the Site; and  
 
(3) delegate authority to the Chief Operating Officer to determine the detailed terms of the 
disposal and agree all documents and take any other actions necessary to achieve best value in 
accordance with the Local Government Act 1999.  
 
Reasons  
 
27.3 The asset was formerly used as a grounds maintenance depot, and forms part of a 
larger site owned by East Sussex College, Eastbourne.  The College has secured outline 
planning permission, and the Council supports the College’s approach to maximise the value of 
the Site which may take the form of a joint sale or a surrender of the lease to East Sussex 
College, Eastbourne.   
 
[Post meeting note: references in the reports to Eastbourne College should be read as East 
Sussex College, Eastbourne.]  
 
28 EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS  
 
28.1 It was RESOLVED to exclude the public and press for the remaining agenda items on 
the grounds that if the public and press were present there would be disclosure to them of 
exempt information as specified in paragraph 3 of Part 1 of the Local Government Act 1972 (as 
amended), namely information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular 
person (including the authority holding that information).  
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



 
 
 

 

29 DISPOSAL OF THE COUNCIL'S LEASEHOLD INTEREST IN LAND TRANSACTION 
WITH EASTBOURNE COLLEGE, EASTBOURNE - EXEMPT INFORMATION  
 
29.1 The Lead Member considered a report by the Chief Operating Officer which contained 
exempt information in support of an earlier agenda item.  
 
29.2 The Lead Member RESOLVED to note the information.  
 
[Post meeting note: references in the reports to Eastbourne College should be read as East 
Sussex College, Eastbourne.]  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 4



 

 

Report to: Lead Member for Resources and Climate Change 

Date of meeting: 14 September 2021 

By: Director of Communities, Economy and Transport 

Title: Notice of Motion: To Support the Climate and Ecological Emergency 
Bill 

Purpose: To consider a Notice of Motion calling for the County Council to 
support the Climate and Ecological Emergency Bill 

_____________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATIONS: The Lead Member is recommended to recommend that the County 
Council rejects the Motion for the reasons set out in the report.  

 

 
1           Background 

 
1.1 The following Notice of Motion has been submitted by Councillor Georgia Taylor:  
 

Humans have already caused irreversible climate change, the impacts of which are being 
felt in the UK and around the world. Global temperatures have increased by over 1 degree 
Celsius from pre-industrial levels. Atmospheric CO2 levels are above 400 parts per million 
(ppm) and continue to rise—this far exceeds the 350 ppm deemed to be a safe level for 
humanity. 
Without more significant and sustained action, the world is set to exceed the Paris 
Agreement’s 1.5°C limit between 2030 and 2040. Therefore, the current UK target of net 
zero by 2050 is not sufficient. It is too little too late. 
The increase in harm caused by a rise of 2°C rather than 1.5°C is significant. This is 
described by the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change’s Special Report on Global 
Warming of 1.5°C published in October 2018. According to the IPCC, limiting heating to 
1.5°C may still be possible with ambitious action from national and sub-national authorities, 
civil society, the private sector and local communities. The costs of failing to address this 
crisis will far outstrip the investments required to prevent it. Investing now will bring many 
benefits in the form of good jobs, breathable cities and thriving communities. 
Council notes that: 

1) Many local authorities are playing an important role in the UK taking action to achieve 
net zero  

2) There is a Bill before Parliament—the Climate and Ecological Emergency Bill 
(published as the Climate and Ecology Bill)—according to which the UK Government 
must develop an emergency strategy that: 

a) requires that the UK plays its fair and proper role in reducing greenhouse gas 
emissions consistent with at least a 66% chance of limiting global temperature 
increase to 1.5 degrees Celsius above pre-industrial temperatures; this 
corresponds to the most ambitious global mitigation pathway available 
according to the 2018 IPCC 1.5C Report. 

b) ensures that all the UK’s consumption emissions are accounted for, including 
international aviation and passenger shipping; 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



 

 

c) ensures that steps to mitigate emissions do not damage ecosystems, food and 
water availability, and human health; 

d) ensures that steps taken to increase the health, abundance, diversity and 
resilience of species, populations and ecosystems follow the mitigation and 
conservation hierarchy - avoid, minimise, restore and offset 

e) restores and expands natural ecosystems, and enhances the management of 
cultivated ecosystems to protect and enhance biodiversity, ecological 
processes and ecosystem service provision, including optimising the state of 
resilient carbon sinks; 

f) includes measures to protect, restore and enhance ecosystems in the United 
Kingdom and elsewhere, where activity is generated from within the United 
Kingdom that is harmful to ecosystems; 

g) ensures an end to the exploration, extraction, export and import of fossil fuels 
by the United Kingdom as rapidly as possible; and 

h) sets up an independent citizens’ assembly, representative of the UK’s 
population, to engage with the UK Parliament and UK Government to help 
develop the emergency strategy. 

 
The County Council resolves to: 

1) Support the Climate and Ecological Emergency (CEE) Bill; 

2) Inform the local media of this decision; 

3) Write to local Members of Parliament, asking them to support or thanking them for supporting 

the CEE Bill; and 

4) Write to the CEE Bill Alliance, the organisers of the campaign for the Bill, expressing its support 

(campaign@ceebill.uk).” 

1.2 In line with County Council practice, the matter has been referred by the Chairman to the Lead 
Member for Resources and Climate Change for consideration to provide information and inform 
debate on the Motion. The Lead Member’s recommendation on this Notice of Motion will be reported 
to the Council at its meeting on 12 October 2021. 

2  Supporting Information 
 

 2.1 The Climate and Ecological Emergency Bill, formally known as the Climate and Ecology Bill, 
was presented to Parliament by Caroline Lucas as a Private Members Bill in September 2020.  A full 
copy of the Bill is included in Appendix 1. It should be noted that the Bill is still progressing through 
the Parliamentary process and could be amended when it is debated by the House of Commons and 
House of Lords. 

 
2.2 The main objective of the Climate and Ecological Emergency Bill is to set more ambitious aims 
for addressing climate change and biodiversity loss than are currently committed to through existing 
legislation and policy. The Bill would: 

 Require the government to set a new legally binding climate target in order to contribute to 
keeping the global average temperature increase to 1.5 degrees Celsius compared with pre-
industrial levels. 

 Give the Secretary of State a duty to create and implement a strategy to achieve those 
objectives. 

 Establish a temporary Climate and Nature Assembly, representative of the UK population, to 
work with the Secretary of State in creating that strategy, which would be subject to approval 
by the House of Commons. 

 

Page 6

http://www.ceebill.uk/
mailto:campaign@ceebill.uk


 

 

 2.3 The Bill would require that the United Kingdom (UK) takes account of the UK's entire carbon 
footprint, including consumption emissions released overseas as a result of goods manufactured 
abroad for use in the UK, rather than just the emissions produced in the UK.  It would also require 
legally-binding annual carbon budgets rather than the current 5 year carbon budgets. 

 
 2.4 A Climate and Ecological Emergency Alliance in support of the Bill was launched in 

September 2020. It currently has the support of 114 MPs, and a number of local authorities and other 
organisations. 

 
 2.5 The urgency of addressing climate change is undisputed. Climate change impacts are linked 

to and likely to worsen existing inequalities, particularly related to gender and income. The UK 
government has set a legally binding target under the Climate Change Act to reach net zero emissions 
by 2050. However, it is unclear how the Bill would enable the UK to get to net zero any faster than the 
current commitment within the Climate Change Act, as there are no provisions within the Bill that 
explain this. There are also no provisions within the Bill to explain how it will deliver measurable 
ecological improvements more effectively than commitments already set out in existing legislation or 
in the Environment Bill 2020. 

 
 2.6 The Committee on Climate Change, which is the independent body that advises government 

on climate change, has set out how England could get to net zero by 2050. It has concluded that it is 
technically feasible but highly challenging and is entirely contingent on a number of factors. These 
include the introduction of clear, stable and well-designed national policies and interventions, the 
appropriate supply chain able to deliver the required scale and pace of change, and an unprecedented 
level of public involvement and consent for change. 

   
 2.7  At present, the government does not have an agreed national decarbonisation plan, and 

there is no single agreed pathway to get to net zero. Over the next year or so the government has 
said that it will produce a net zero strategy, a heat and buildings strategy, an industrial decarbonisation 
strategy, a hydrogen strategy, a nature strategy, the Environment Act and the Agriculture Act, amongst 
others.  Collectively, these are expected to set out in detail how the UK will transition to net zero and 
address biodiversity loss.  It is recommended that the County Council allows for this significant body 
of forthcoming legislation and strategies to come forward and take effect, and uses the opportunity to 
respond to consultations, before considering supporting changes such as those set out in the Climate 
and Ecological Emergency Bill.  

 
 
3 Conclusion and Reasons for Recommendations 

3.1 The County Council recognises the urgency of addressing climate change and biodiversity 
loss, as reflected in its climate emergency action plan and its lead role in the Sussex Local Nature 
Partnership.  However, the Climate and Ecological Emergency Bill does not set out how its enactment 
would address climate change or biodiversity loss any more effectively than current or anticipated 
legislation and strategies.  For this reason, the Lead Member is recommended to recommend to the 
County Council that the Notice of Motion be rejected. 
 
RUPERT CLUBB 
Director of Communities, Economy and Transport 
 
Contact Officers: Andy Arnold 
Tel. 01273 481606 
Email: andy.arnold@eastsussex.gov.uk  
 
LOCAL MEMBERS:  
All.   
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:  
none. 

Page 7

mailto:andy.arnold@eastsussex.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Climate and Ecology Bill 

[AS INTRODUCED] 

CONTENTS 

1 Duties of the Prime Minister: climate and ecological emergency objectives 
2 Duties of the Secretary of State: Climate and Ecological Emergency Strategy  
3 Principles for the draft strategy  
4 Citizens’ Assembly on the Climate and Ecological Emergency 
5 Content of the draft strategy and proposed revisions 
6 Approval and amendment of the strategy by the House of Commons 
7 Amendments to the Climate Change Act 2008  
8 Interpretation  
9 Financial provisions  

10 Extent, commencement and short title 

58/1 Bill 172 

Page 9

Appendix 1



Page 10



[AS INTRODUCED] 

A 

B I L L  
TO 

Require the Prime Minister to achieve climate and ecology objectives; to give 
the Secretary of State a duty to create and implement a strategy to achieve 
those objectives; to establish a Citizens’ Assembly to work with the Secretary 
of State in creating that strategy; to give duties to the Committee on Climate 
Change regarding the objectives and strategy; and for connected purposes. 

B E IT ENACTED by the Queen’s most Excellent Majesty, by and with the advice 
and consent of the Lords Spiritual and Temporal, and Commons, in this present 

Parliament assembled, and by the authority of the same, as follows:— 

1 Duties of the Prime Minister: climate and ecological emergency objectives 

(1) The Prime Minister must— 
(a) declare a climate and ecological emergency; and  
(b) 

5 
achieve the objectives in subsection (2) (‘the objectives’) to tackle that 
emergency. 

(2) The objectives in tackling the climate and ecological emergency are to ensure 
that the United Kingdom—  

(a) reduces its anthropogenic greenhouse gas emissions (‘emissions’) at 

10 
a rate that would be consistent with keeping the global average 
temperature increase to 1.5 degrees Celsius compared to pre-industrial 
levels, in accordance with the provisions of the UNFCCC and the Paris 
Agreement, taking into account—  

(i) the United Kingdom’s greenhouse gas footprint, and 
(ii) 

15 
the United Kingdom’s and other countries’ common but 
differentiated responsibilities, and respective capabilities, given 
national circumstances;  

(b) restores and regenerates biodiverse habitats, natural and 
human-modified ecosystems and their soils;  

(c) 
20 

expands natural ecosystems, wherever possible, and enhances 
agroecosystems for the purposes of safeguarding their carbon sink 
capacity and their resilience to global heating;  

(d) actively conserves biodiversity and safeguards ecosystem 
services; and reduces its overall anthropogenic impact on the variety, 
abundance and health of soils and biodiversity. 

58/1 Bill 172 

1 Climate and Ecology Bill 

Page 11



(3) In seeking to achieve the objectives the Prime Minister must consult—  
(a) the Committee on Climate Change,  
(b) any other public body or other body charged with protecting the 

environment in—  
5 (i) England 

(ii) Scotland 
(iii) Wales, or 
(iv) Northern Ireland, and 

(c) 
10 

any other public body or other body deemed appropriate by the Prime 
Minister.  

2 Duties of the Secretary of State: Climate and Ecological Emergency Strategy  

(1) The Climate and Ecological Emergency Strategy (‘the strategy’) is a document 
that sets out the measures intended to achieve the objectives. 

(2) The Secretary of State must—  
15 (a) prepare a draft strategy that—  

(i) in his or her opinion will achieve the objectives 
(ii) adheres to the principles in section 3, and  

(iii) takes into account recommendations of the Citizens’ Assembly 
under section 4, in accordance with section 5;  

20 (b) lay the first draft strategy before Parliament no later than three months 
after the Citizens’ Assembly publishes its first report under section 
4(7); and  

(c) lay before Parliament a report containing proposals for revisions to 

25 
the strategy if he or she thinks such revisions are necessary for the 
objectives to be achieved.  

(3) The Secretary of State must seek the consent of—  
(a) the Scottish Parliament;  
(b) Senedd Cymru; and  
(c) the Northern Ireland Assembly  

30 for any proposed measure in, or revision to, the strategy that is within their 
legislative competence. 

(4) The draft strategy is subject to approval by the House of Commons, in 
accordance with section 6.  

(5) 
35 

The Secretary of State must take all reasonable steps to implement the 
measures in a strategy or revised strategy approved by the House of 
Commons. 

3 Principles for the draft strategy  

(1) The draft strategy—  
(a) 

40 
must set out the steps the Secretary of State will take to reduce the 
United Kingdom’s emissions in accordance with section 1(2)(a), 
distinguishing between emissions reductions to be achieved—  

Climate and Ecology Bill 2 

Page 12



(i) primarily by reducing the anthropogenic greenhouse gas source, 
and  

(ii) by actively restoring and enhancing natural climate solutions 

5 
within the United Kingdom, including both natural and 
human-modified ecosystems as resilient carbon sinks;  

(b) may count the use of carbon sequestration via negative emissions 
technologies towards achieving the emissions reduction required under 
section 1(2)(a) only insofar as it— 

(i) 
10 

offsets emissions that cannot be eliminated in the cement, steel 
and agriculture sectors,  

(ii) compensates for the United Kingdom’s cumulative historical 
emissions, or  

(iii) mitigates any overshoot above the global average temperature 

15 
increase of 1.5 degrees Celsius compared to 
pre-industrial levels;  

(c) may only propose the use of negative emissions technologies for carbon 
sequestration when the deployment of these would not lead to critical 
impacts in the United Kingdom and abroad, including—  

(i) 
20 

critical impacts on biodiverse habitats, natural and 
human-modified ecosystems and their soils,  

(ii) critical impacts on food production or water availability, or  
(iii) any other critical social or ecological impact;  

(d) must contain measures to ensure that the variety, abundance and health 

25 
of the United Kingdom’s ecosystems, and the ecosystem services they 
generate, are enhanced by— 

(i) active restoration, and 
(ii) the minimising of adverse impacts of domestic consumption 

and production on those systems; 
(e) 

30 
must ensure that all necessary steps are taken so that domestic UK 
supply chains and the supply chains of UK imports— 

(i) minimise adverse impacts on ecological systems, including 
inter alia soils and biodiverse habitats overseas, and 

(ii) implement conditions to protect the health and resilience of 
those systems; 

35 (f) must— 
(i) take into consideration the United Kingdom’s present and 

historical role in global emissions, and comparative economic 
situation as indicated by the Paris Agreement, and   

(ii) 
40 

apply the principles of international equity and 
intergenerational equity; 

(g) must not disproportionately detrimentally affect—  
(i) deprived communities; or  

(ii) people with protected characteristics under section 4 of the 
Equality Act 2010;  

45 (h) must include proposals for— 

3 Climate and Ecology Bill 

Page 13



(i) financial support and retraining for people who work in 
emissions-intensive sectors and industries which will be 
adversely affected by other proposed measures, and  

(ii) financial and technological support for developing countries.  

5 (2) Each measure in the draft strategy must include timeframes within which all 
necessary actions are to commence and be completed.  

4 Citizens’ Assembly on the Climate and Ecological Emergency 

(1) There shall be a Citizens’ Assembly comprising a representative cross-section 

10 
of the United Kingdom population to work in cooperation with the Secretary 
of State and to recommend measures to be included in, and revisions to, the 
draft strategy.  

(2) That Citizens’ Assembly shall be known as the Citizens’ Assembly on the 
Climate and Ecological Emergency (‘the Assembly’).   

(3) The Secretary of State must— 
15 (a) within one week of this Act coming into force, issue a call for tenders 

for a reputable independent body (‘the independent body’) to carry 
out the functions in subsection (4);  

(b) within eight weeks of this Act coming into force, appoint the selected 
independent body.  

20 (4) The functions of the independent body are to establish, convene and run the 
Assembly. 

(5) The independent body must— 
(a) commence its work in accordance with subsection (4) immediately 

upon appointment; and  
25 (b) convene the first meeting of the Assembly within five months of this 

Act coming into force. 

(6) The functions of the Assembly are to—  
(a) consider information provided by experts, and by any other persons 

who have submitted evidence to the Assembly;  
30 (b) deliberate as to how the objectives can be achieved in ways consistent 

with the principles in section 3;  
(c) vote on measures proposed for inclusion in the strategy;  
(d) seek agreement with the Secretary of State on the content of 

the strategy;  
35 (e) propose revisions to the strategy; and 

(f) report to the Secretary of State in accordance with subsections (7) and 
(8).  

(7) The first report by the Assembly must—  
(a) 

40 
contain recommendations for measures to be included in the strategy 
consistent with the principles in section 3 and agreed by at least 
sixty-six per cent of the members of the Assembly;  

(b) set out the reasons for each such recommendation; and 

Climate and Ecology Bill 4 

Page 14



(c) be published within six months of the first meeting of the Assembly. 

(8) The Assembly may make further reports containing proposed amendments 
to the strategy in order for the objectives to be met, which— 

(a) 
5 

must contain recommendations for amendments to the strategy 
consistent with the principles in section 3 and agreed by at least 
sixty-six per cent of the members of the Assembly; and  

(b) must set out the reasons for each such recommendation.  

(9) The Secretary of State may by regulations made by statutory instrument make 
provision about—  

10 (a) the establishment and governance of the Assembly; and 
(b) the remuneration and expenses of—  

(i) members of the Assembly, and 
(ii) witnesses and other persons involved with the Assembly. 

(10) 
15 

Regulations under this section may not be made unless a draft of the statutory 
instrument containing them has been laid before, and approved by a resolution 
of, each House of Parliament. 

5 Content of the draft strategy and proposed revisions 

(1) The Secretary of State must—  
(a) 

20 
include in the draft strategy laid under section 2(2)(b) any 
recommendation under section 4(7)(a) that is a qualifying 
recommendation; and  

(b) propose any recommendation under section 4(8)(a) that is a qualifying 
recommendation as a revision to the strategy.  

(2) A “qualifying recommendation” is one which— 
25 (a) was agreed by more than eighty per cent of the members of the 

Assembly; and  
(b) is not in the category in subsection (5). 

(3) The Secretary of State must consider, and seek agreement with the Assembly 

30 
with a view to including in the strategy, any recommendation of the 
Assembly under section 4(7)(a) or 4(8)(a) that—  

(a) was agreed by more than eighty per cent of the members of the 
Assembly; and  

(b) is the category in subsection (5). 

(4) 
35 

The Secretary of State must consider any other recommendation of the 
Assembly for inclusion in the strategy and lay before Parliament a report 
explaining his or her reasons for agreeing or disagreeing with it— 

(a) in the case of a recommendation under section 4(7)(a), no later than 
the day on which the draft strategy is so laid; and  

(b) 
40 

in the case of a recommendation section 4(8)(a), no later than one 
week after that recommendation is made.  

(5) The category in this section is a recommendation that has as its main object— 
(a) disbursing public funds; or  

5 Climate and Ecology Bill 

Page 15



(b) imposing charges upon the people;  

(6) Any question over subsection (5) shall be determined by the Speaker of the 
House of Commons.  

6 Approval and amendment of the strategy by the House of Commons 

5 (1) A measure forms part of the strategy if a motion containing it of the form in 
subsection (2) is agreed by the House of Commons.  

(2) The form of the motion is “That this House approves [text of measure(s)] to 
be included in the Climate and Ecological Emergency Strategy”.  

(3) 
10 

The Secretary of State must move a motion of the form in subsection (2) 
containing the text of any recommendation under section 4(7)(a) that is a 
qualifying recommendation as soon as reasonably practicable after laying the 
draft strategy under section 2(2)(b).  

(4) The strategy may be amended if a motion of the form in subsection (5) is 
agreed by the House of Commons.  

15 (5) The form of the motion is “That this House amends the Climate and Ecological 
Emergency Strategy as follows—[text of amendment(s)]”.  

(6) The Secretary of State must move a motion of the form in subsection (5) 
containing the text of any recommendation under section 4(8)(a) that is a 

20 
qualifying recommendation as soon as reasonably practicable after that 
recommendation is made.  

7 Amendments to the Climate Change Act 2008  

(1) The Climate Change Act 2008 (“the 2008 Act”) is amended as follows.  

(2) After section 8(2) (setting of carbon budgets for budgetary periods) insert— 

“(2A) Annual carbon budgets must be set in a manner consistent with— 
25 (a) meeting the objectives in sections 1 and 2 (duties of the Prime 

Minister and Secretary of State) of the Climate and Ecology Act 
2020, and  

(b) complying with the international obligations of the United 

30 
Kingdom, including the provisions of the United Nations 
Framework Convention on Climate Change and the Paris 
Agreement within that treaty.” 

(3) After section 34 (advice in connection with carbon budgets) insert—  

“34A Advice in connection with the Climate and Ecology Act 2020  

(1) 
35 

It is the duty of the Committee on Climate Change to carry out the 
functions in subsections (2) to (5). 

(2) Advise the Prime Minister on achieving the objectives in section 1(2) 
of the Climate and Ecology Act 2020 (“the 2020 Act”).  

Climate and Ecology Bill 6 

Page 16



(3) Formulate and publish separate methodologies, for the United Kingdom, 
to—  

(a) calculate the carbon sink capacity of natural climate solutions;  
(b) calculate emissions and projected reductions in emissions—  

5 (i) including, and 
(ii) excluding 

the effects of natural climate solutions in reducing emissions;  
(c) calculate the extent to which carbon sequestration via negative 

emissions technologies may—  
10 (i) offset emissions that cannot be eliminated in the cement, 

steel and agriculture sectors,  
(ii) compensate for the United Kingdom’s cumulative 

historical emissions, or  
(iii) 

15 
mitigate any overshoot above the global average 
temperature increase of 1.5 degrees Celsius compared 
to pre-industrial levels;  

(d) measure the health of ecosystems, including measures of species 
abundance, the quality and scope of biodiverse habitats, and 
soil quality and contamination; and  

20 (e) evaluate the impact of the activities of commercial bodies that 
issue, commission, facilitate, finance or are otherwise involved 
in import and export supply chains on ecological systems, 
including on— 

(i) the extraction of natural resources,  
25 (ii) land degradation, including but not limited to 

deforestation and other depletion or reduction of natural 
ecosystems,  

(iii) pollution, and  
(iv) waste. 

30 (4) Publish annual reports on the progress made by the Secretary of State 
in implementing the measures in a strategy or amended strategy under 
section 2(5) of the 2020 Act.  

(5) Determine what constitutes “critical impacts” in section 3(1)(c) of the 
2020 Act.  

35 (6) In carrying out its work under this section, the Committee on Climate 
Change must—  

(a) base and seek to develop its advice using— 
(i) transparent and scientific interpretation of the objectives 

specified in section 1 of the 2020 Act,  
40 (ii) the perspectives of the Intergovernmental Science-Policy 

Platform on Biodiversity, and  
(iii) the methodologies from the Biodiversity Metric 2.0; 

(b) acknowledge and abide by the environmental principles, 

45 
including the precautionary principle, implicit in the objectives 
in section 1 of the 2020 Act.  

7 Climate and Ecology Bill 

Page 17



(7) Terms in this section have the same meaning as in the 2020 Act.” 

8 Interpretation  

In this Act— 

5 
“agroecosystems” means the set of relationships and interactions between 

soils, climates, cultivated plants, organisms of different trophic levels, 
and human groups in areas of agricultural production; 

“anthropogenic greenhouse gas source” means any human activities that 
lead to a release of any greenhouse gas into the atmosphere;  

10 
“anthropogenic impact” means the direct and indirect negative influences 

of human action on water, soil and biodiversity;  
“biodiverse habitats” means land and water habitats that are abundant 

in the number of living species;   
“carbon sequestration” means the process by which carbon sinks remove 

carbon dioxide from the atmosphere;  
15 “carbon sink capacity” means the ability of natural reservoirs including 

(without prejudice to the generality) woodlands, wetlands, peatlands 
and soils to absorb more carbon than they emit;  

“deprived community” is a community with a high rating of deprivation, 
according to Government indices of deprivation; 

20 “ecosystems” includes both natural and human-modified land and water 
ecosystems, such as agroecosystems and urban ecosystems;  

“greenhouse gases” means carbon dioxide, methane, nitrous oxide, 
hydrofluorocarbons, perfluorocarbons, sulphur hexafluoride and any 

25 
other gas designated as “a greenhouse gas” by the Committee on 
Climate Change;  

“natural climate solutions” means the active restoring and enhancing of 
both natural and human-modified ecosystems as resilient carbon sinks 
which include, but are not restricted to, reforestation, sustainable land 

30 
management, and the restoration of wetlands, peat bogs and 
coastal ecosystems; 

“negative emissions technologies” include, but are not limited to, 
bioenergy with carbon capture and storage and direct air capture of 
carbon dioxide and storage that have been independently assessed 
against standards of quality;  

35 “the Paris Agreement” is the agreement within the United Nations 
Framework Convention on Climate Change adopted on 12 
December 2015;  

“pre-industrial levels” is the global mean temperature over the 
period 1850-1900;  

40 “the UNFCCC” is the United Nations Framework Convention on Climate 
Change adopted on 9 May 1992; 

“the United Kingdom’s greenhouse gas footprint” is the sum of—  
(a) all United Kingdom territorial emissions except those generated 

45 
in the production of goods and services exported from the 
United Kingdom,  

Climate and Ecology Bill 8 

Page 18



(b) all consumption emissions generated abroad in the production 
and distribution of goods and services imported to the United 
Kingdom, and 

(c) 
5 

all emissions generated from United Kingdom passenger 
transportation demands related to both personal and 
commercial passenger travel outside of United Kingdom 
territory including international aviation, passenger shipping 
and land-based transport.  

9 Financial provisions  

10 (1) There is to be paid out of money provided by Parliament— 
(a) any expenditure incurred under or by virtue of this Act; and   
(b) any increase attributable to this Act in the sums payable under any other 

Act out of money so provided. 

(2) 
15 

There is to be paid into the Consolidated Fund any increase attributable to this Act 
in the sums payable into that Fund under any other Act. 

10 Extent, commencement and short title 

(1) This Act extends to England and Wales, Scotland and Northern Ireland.  

(2) This Act comes into force on the day on which it is passed.  

(3) This Act may be cited as the Climate and Ecology Act 2020.  

9 Climate and Ecology Bill 

Page 19



Climate and Ecology Bill 

[AS INTRODUCED] 

A 

B I L L  
TO 

Require the Prime Minister to achieve climate and ecology objectives; to give the 
Secretary of State a duty to create and implement a strategy to achieve those objectives; 
to establish a Citizens’ Assembly to work with the Secretary of State in creating that 
strategy; to give duties to the Committee on Climate Change regarding the objectives 
and strategy; and for connected purposes. 

Presented by Caroline Lucas 
supported by Alex Sobel, Tommy Sheppard, 
Wera Hobhouse, Ben Lake, Claire Hanna, 

Stephen Farry, Alan Brown, Liz Saville Roberts, 
Nadia Whittome and Zarah Sultana. 

Ordered, by The House of Commons, to be 
Printed, 2nd September 2020. 

© Parliamentary copyright House of Commons 2020 
This publication may be reproduced under the terms of the Open Parliament Licence, which is published at 

www.parliament.uk/site-information/copyright 

PUBLISHED BY THE AUTHORITY OF THE HOUSE OF COMMONS 

58/1 Bill 172 
Page 20

https://www.parliament.uk/site-information/copyright

	Agenda
	1 Decisions made by the Lead Cabinet Member on 29 July 2021
	4 Notice of Motion: To support the Climate and Ecological Emergency Bill
	LMRCC 14 September 2021 - NoM - Climate Ecology Bill - Appendix 1


